CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL

Minutes of a meeting of the **Southern Planning Committee** held on Wednesday, 13th May, 2009 at Council Chamber, Municipal Buildings, Earle Street, Crewe CW1 2BJ

PRESENT

Councillor B Dykes (Chairman) Councillor G Merry (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors T Beard, D Bebbington, M Davies, S Furlong, S Jones, A Kolker, A Richardson, R Walker and J Weatherill

OFFICERS PRESENT

Rachel Goddard (Senior Lawyer), David Malcolm (Development Control Manager – Sandbach Office) and Ben Haywood (Principal Planning Officer – Crewe Office)

11 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors L Gilbert, Mrs B Howell, J Jones and S McGrory.

12 CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST/PRE-DETERMINATION

Councillor A Kolker declared a personal and prejudicial interest in respect of application number P09/0546c, 194 Main Road, Goostrey, on the grounds that his father was the applicant. In accordance with the Code of Conduct, he withdrew from the meeting during consideration of this item.

13 MINUTES

RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 22 April 2009 be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

14 09/0430C ERECTION OF TWO DWELLINGS, LAND ADJACENT TO 6 BRINDLEY WAY, CONGLETON

Note: Councillor P Mason (the Ward Councillor), Ms L Broadhurst (an objector) and Mr D Tatton (on behalf of the applicant) attended the meeting and addressed the Committee on this matter.

The Committee considered a report regarding the above planning application.

RESOLVED – That the application be DEFERRED for a Committee site inspection so that Members can assess the impact of the proposed

development on the street scene, neighbouring amenities and the open countryside.

15 P09/0130 CHANGE OF PITCH AND INCREASE IN ROOF HEIGHT OF EXISTING GARAGE, 24 GAINSBOROUGH ROAD CREWE FOR MR P GARRETT

Note: Mr P Butler (the applicant) attended the meeting and addressed the Committee on this matter.

The Committee considered a report regarding the above planning application.

RESOLVED – That the application be APPROVED subject to the following conditions:

- 1. Standard time
- 2. Approved plans
- 3. Materials to match existing dwelling
- 4. Two off-street parking spaces to be provided and retained
- 5. Details of cycle storage to be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and retained thereafter

16 07/1442/REM ERECTION OF 16 NO. B1, B2 AND B8 UNITS, PLOT 51C, POCHIN WAY, MIDDLEWICH

The Committee considered a report regarding the above planning application.

RESOLVED – That delegated authority be granted to the Head of Planning and Policy to determine the application, following receipt of confirmation from Natural England that all ecological matters have been appropriately addressed.

17 09/0233/FUL RESIDENTIAL DEVLOPMENT - 11 UNITS, LAND BETWEEN MILL STREET & QUEEN STREET

Note: Mr W J Eardley (an objector) attended the meeting and addressed the Committee on this matter.

The Committee considered a report regarding the above planning application.

RESOLVED – That the application be REFUSED for the following reasons:

1. Insufficient information has been submitted with the application in order to justify the loss of an existing employment site. The applicant has not made reasonable attempts to market the property for employment uses and has failed to demonstrate that there would be

substantial planning benefits that would outweigh the loss of the site for employment purposes. The proposal is thereby contrary to Policies GR1 and E10 of the adopted Congleton Borough Local Plan First Review.

2. The proposed development fails to achieve an adequate quality of design to justify approval of planning permission. In reaching this conclusion regard was had to the siting, design and layout of the proposed dwellings. It is therefore concluded that the proposal would detract from the character and appearance of the area, within which the site is located and would be contrary to PPS1, RSS Policy DP7 and Local Plan Policies GR1 and GR2 of the adopted Congleton Borough Local Plan First Review which seek to promote high quality and inclusive design.

18 09/0259/FUL RETENTION OF HARDCORE AREA FOR THE STORAGE OF WASTE DISPOSAL SKIPS AS AN EXTENSION TO THE EXISTING SKIP HIRE BUSINESS, BETCHTON COTTAGE FARM, CAPPERS LANE, BETCHTON FOR MR THOMAS GARDINER

Note: Councillor A Barratt (the Ward Councillor) attended the meeting and addressed the Committee on this matter.

The Committee considered a report regarding the above planning application.

RESOLVED – That, in accordance with agreed procedures, the application be REFERRED TO THE STRATEGIC PLANNING BOARD for determination, on the grounds that the Committee was minded to approve the application and that approval would be a significant departure from policy.

Members were minded to approve the application for the following reasons:

- 1. The existing business had been established for many years
- 2. It was very unlikely that the land would ever revert to agricultural or horticultural uses
- 3. The degree of harm on the visual amenity of the area was very limited.

19 09/0546C REPLACEMENT OF GARAGE ROOF WITH PITCHED, 194 MAIN ROAD, GOOSTREY

The Committee considered a report regarding the above planning application.

RESOLVED – That the application be APPROVED subject to the following conditions:

- 1. Commencement of development (3 years)
- 2. Notwithstanding the details submitted with the application, no development shall commence until samples of the roofing materials have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details

20 SECTION 106 AGREEMENT FOR REASEHEATH COLLEGE, NANTWICH FOR PLANNING APPLICATION P08/1126

The Committee considered a report regarding the above planning application, which had been considered by the Development Control Committee of the former Crewe and Nantwich Borough Council on 4 December 2008. The application had been approved subject to the applicant signing a Section 106 agreement and subject to conditions. Members had asked that, in the event that no agreement on the amount of the contribution had been reached by 28 February 2009, the matter be referred back to the Development Control Committee for further consideration.

At a meeting of the Development Control Committee on 5 March 2009, it was verbally reported that the sum of £30,000 had been secured, but that this had not been confirmed in writing. Written confirmation of this agreement had been received in writing on 4 March 2009, but this was not recorded in the minutes of the meeting.

RESOLVED

- (a) That the commuted payment of £30,000 as a contribution towards the provision of the Connect2 cycleway (or other similar improvements between Crewe and Nantwich), as required by the Section 106 agreement referred to in the decision made by the former Crewe and Nantwich Borough Council Development Control Committee on 4 December 2008, be approved.
- (b) That there be no necessity for the Committee to consider any further issues in relation to the Section 106 Agreement for Reaseheath College, Nantwich for Planning Application P08/1126.

21 SECTION 106 AGREEMENT FOR PLANNING APPLICATION FOR SHELTERED APARTMENTS AND HOUSE MANAGER'S ACCOMMODATION ON LAND OFF RED LION LANE, NANTWICH FOR MCCARTHY AND STONE (DEVELOPMENTS) LTD.

Note: Mr C Butt (the applicant) attended the meeting and addressed the Committee on this matter.

The Committee considered a report regarding the Section 106 Agreement for the Sheltered Apartments currently under construction in Red Lion Lane Nantwich. At a meeting on 27 July 2006, the Development Control Committee of the former Crewe and Nantwich Borough Council had approved planning application P05/1618 for Sheltered Apartments for the Elderly and House Manager's Accommodation with landscaping and car parking, subject to the applicant signing a Section 106 Agreement

A request had subsequently been received for an alteration to the Agreement, as the developer no longer wished to provide the House Manager's Accommodation in the development.

RESOLVED – That the Section 106 Agreement relating to planning application P05/1618 for Sheltered Apartments for the Elderly and House Manager's Accommodation with landscaping and car parking on land off Red Lion Lane, Nantwich, be amended as follows:

- the definition of "Communal Facilities" be changed to exclude reference to the "House Manager's Accommodation"
- the definition of "House Manager's Accommodation" be deleted from the definitions at the start of the Agreement.

The meeting commenced at 2.00 pm and concluded at 3.10 pm

Councillor B Dykes (Chairman)